[bookmark: _GoBack]GFO-16-306
Addressing Air Quality and Environmental Impacts of Conventional and Emerging Electricity Sector Technologies in a Changing Climate
California Energy Commission
Pre-Application Workshop: September 20, 2016





Pre-Application Questions, Answers, and Clarifications






State of California
California Energy Commission
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/index.html


[bookmark: _Toc448993431]General
1. Q:	How flexible is CEC in awarding more money? 
A: 	Maximum amounts of awards for each group are listed in Table Section I, F-1 in the solicitation manual. Additionally, per Section F.1, The Energy Commission reserves the right to increase or decrease the available funding and the group minimum/maximum award amounts. However, there are currently no plans to raise the maximum amounts of the awards.

2. Q:	How many proposals are, on average, received for one of the solicitation groups?
A: 	It varies. The number of proposals received, per group, has varied from zero to about 20.

3. Q:	Will there be GFOs offered in the future and are there other programs offering funding?
A:	Yes. To review active and anticipated solicitations please review our webpage at the following link: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#anticipated or subscribe to the “opportunity list” to receive an e-mail when future contracts, notices, and solicitations are released, please review our webpage at the following link: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/. 

4. Q:	I see in the GFO document that "Airline ticket purchases and payments made to out-of-state workers are not considered ‘funds spent in California.’” Does this mean that no air travel can be paid for out of these funds or only that we couldn't fly in an out-of-state worker? If, for example, we only hired Californians and traveled only within CA, but traveled by air on airlines that are headquartered out of state would we not qualify as 100% in-state? This is a particularly thorny issue for us, since we're based in a remote region of CA, making road travel to many locations logistically impractical.
A:	We are making an addendum in the GFO-16-306 solicitation manual to update this information. After the change is made, the following ruling will be used with regard to airline ticket purchases: Airline ticket purchases for out-of-state travel and payments made to out-of-state workers are not considered funds “spent in California.” However, funds spent by out-of-state workers in California (e.g., hotel and food) and airline travel originating and ending in California are considered “funds spent in California.” We are also making an addendum of the possible points for EPIC funds spent in California as follows:
	Percentage of EPIC funds spent in CA
(derived from budget attachment 7)
	Percentage of Possible Points

	>60%
	20%

	>70%
	40%

	>80%
	60%

	>90%
	80%

	>98%
	100%



5. Q:	In past solicitations, Support Letters were expected to be provided by stakeholders that could be any entity that benefitted from the project or supported the project but would not receive any EPIC funds for the project. In some of the recent solicitations, the definition of “stakeholders” is any entity/individual that will benefit from or be involved in the project. The requirement does not state that the entity cannot receive EPIC funds. 
In the context of the above, we would like to know for those solicitations that do not explicitly state that a project stakeholder is an entity that will not be receiving EPIC funds, if subcontractors could now include a support letter to the Prime Entity responding to a proposal? Some of our Prime Applicant partners continue to request Letters of Support/Commitment on behalf of our participation as a Sub.
A:	Section III in the solicitation manual states: All applicants must include at least one support letter from a project stakeholder (i.e., an entity or individual that will benefit from or be involved in the project) that: (1) describes the stakeholder’s interest or involvement in the project; (2) indicates the extent to which the project has the support of the relevant industry and/or organizations; and (3) describes any support it intends (but does not necessarily commit) to provide for the project, such as funding or the provision of a test deployment site.
In other words, the project stakeholder who offers a Support Letter must derive benefit from the project AND must provide support to the project beyond paid services. If this applies to your subcontractor, then it is possible to include a Support Letter from Sub to a Prime Applicant.
6. Q:	We are not sure whether proposed work will be conducted in California because we have not selected a contractor (a subcontractor to CEC in this case) to do the proposed work. How is this going to affect the proposal evaluation? Do we get penalized or disqualified for this uncertainty?
A:	Proposed work can be conducted outside of California and this will not be a ground for failing the proposal. However, all test facilities/sites listed in the proposed scope of work must be located in a California electric Investor Owned Utility (IOU) service territory (PG&E, SDG&E, or SCE) per section IV, E: Application Screening. Failure to meet this requirement will result in disqualification of the proposal. Furthermore, submitted proposals that fail to identify key team members including subcontractors would receive a lower score under the scoring criteria 4, “Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources.” Additionally, projects that spend less than 60% of EPIC funds in California will receive 0 points out of a 15 possible points in scoring criteria 6, “EPIC funds spent in California.” Note also that each subcontract containing: 1) $100,000 or more of Energy Commission funds; or 2) 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds requested must complete a separate set of complete budget forms detailing the expected expenditures of the subcontractor. Failure to meet this requirement will result in disqualification of the proposal.

7. Q:	We have an estimated cost for the proposed work, but we do not have exact amount, nor do we have the detailed cost break down required by the budget form (attachment 7). This is because we have not selected a contractor (a subcontractor to CEC in this case) to do the proposed work and we do not expect to select one by the proposal submission deadline. How is this going to affect the proposal evaluation? Do we get penalized or disqualified for this uncertainty?
A:	All budget forms must be filled out and submitted along with the application. Additionally, each subcontract containing: 1) $100,000 or more of Energy Commission funds; or 2) 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds requested must complete a separate set of complete budget forms detailing the expected expenditures of the subcontractor. Failure to meet these requirements will result in disqualification of the proposal. 

8. Q:	On page 42 of the GFO, under criteria 6 for application screening. Do pilot testing and demonstration apply to safety related projects (what is the scope/definition of pilot testing and demonstration)? If testing related to safety is needed, and it will not be conducted in California, would the proposal fail to pass the pre-screening, and be rejected subsequently?   
A:	Pilot testing and demonstrations of advanced technologies do not pertain to this solicitation. Testing alternative refrigerants for energy savings, refrigerant flammability and other properties can occur outside of California. If the testing is conducted outside of California, the proposal will not fail. However, this may have an impact on the score under scoring criteria 6, “EPIC “Funds Spent in California.” Pilot testing activities and demonstration are only required for the proposals under Group 7. Please see response to Question 6. 

9. Q:	In reading the solicitation announcement for EPIC GFO-16-306, section I.G. lists anticipated start and end dates that approximate a 36 month project. However, Section III.D.6 states that "work must be scheduled for completion within 36 to 48 months of the project start date.” Is a 48 month project timeline with an end date 48 months after the start date allowable?
A:	In the solicitation manual, under Section IV. C, Grounds to Reject an Application or Cancel an Award, your application may be rejected if the project end date extends past the anticipated agreement end date specified in the “Key Activities Schedule” in Part I. The end date of agreement must be before June 30, 2020. However, the applicants should submit all deliverables 3 months prior to end of agreement date.
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10. Q:	Is a project that will spend all of its funding outside California ineligible to apply for this EPIC-funded GFO-16-306? Or, would a project still be eligible (if all funds were to be spent out of the state of California), but receive zero of 15 points in scoring criteria 6, “EPIC funds spent in California”?  
A: 	Please see response to Question 6.

11. Q:	a) Must the host facility be located in California? 
b) And if not, would the funds count towards spent in California if facility is owned by California entity?
A:	a) Please see response to Questions 6 and 8.
	b) To qualify as funds spent in California, California state income tax must be paid on wages paid by EPIC funds. Any out-of-state materials, equipment, leases, rentals, including food and lodging that are entered into with out-of-state companies would not be considered funds “Spent in California.” However, purchases or agreements that occurred in California will count as funds spent in California.
12. Q: 	Is it possible to get an EPIC award for work at a facility that was built using funds from previous EPIC awards? We received in 2014 an EPIC award (EPC-14-033) to install and demonstrate a forest waste bioenergy gasification facility. This power plant has cooling towers that intend to use degraded water. Is there a conflict to have two EPIC awards given to the same site?
A:	A proposal for a new project at a site previously supported by the Energy Commission’s research funds is eligible to apply to GFO-16-306.
13. Q:	Is it mandatory to hire California-based personnel to conduct field testing work outside of California? 
A:	No, it is not mandatory that the field testing work is conducted by California-based personnel. However, Section IV, F EPIC Funds Spent in California states the “payments made to out-of-state workers are not considered funds “spent in California.” That means that the proposal will receive less than the maximum available 15 points in this scoring criteria if EPIC funding will be used to pay for out-of-state labor. Alternatively match funding can be used to pay out-of-state workers, to avoid reducing the score for this criterion.
14. Group 3:
Q:	If the applicant responded to the CEC EPIC GFO 15-325 with a proposal for Group 1 that overlaps with the requirements of this solicitation, will allowances be given for re-scoping abstracts for CEC EPIC GFO 15-325 that pass through Phase One of the review process?
A:	If there is overlap between your application for GFO-16-306 and the abstract submitted to GFO-15-325 and you are selected to submit a full application under that solicitation, you may make minor revisions to your application to GFO-15-325 to remove duplicative activities. However, it is recommended that you explain in the application to GFO-15-325 the need to remove duplication and how the revisions are not substantive. As stated in GFO-15-325 “If different projects are submitted for Phase 1 and Phase 2, the application will be rejected.” 
15. Group 3:
Q:	One of the bullets says: Identify opportunities to offset some of the costs for payments to ecosystem services due to harvesting and transportation of biomass to electricity generation facilities (e.g. cascading usage) taking into account some optimal set of distances, feedstock harvesting and handling strategies, and characteristics of biomass power plants. Can you clarify what you are looking for here?
A:	Under this bullet we are seeking to identify management strategies for harvesting, transportation, combustion of forest-derived biomass and field residues that would increase the overall value of biomass (e.g. energy production combined with ‘co-products’ such as compost or nutrients, reuse and recycling of products and raw materials, etc.) and provide additional benefits to the ecosystems that supply woody biomass and field residues (decreased danger of wildfire, increased resiliency of feedstock, etc.).
16. Group 3:
Q:	Geographic scope for feedstock sources. Are you only interested in research involving feedstock that originates in California?
A:	Yes. The research under this group must be focused on a forest-derived biomass and field residues originating in California.	
17. Group 3:
Q:	Are we treating forestry-derived residues and field residues separately?  If so, could you provide a more detailed definition of each category?
A:	The purpose of Group 3 is to develop a consistent methodology for life cycle accounting of net atmospheric GHG emissions from the woody biomass and agricultural field residues with the emphasis on forest-derived biomass utilized for energy generation. In this context, the proposed research must address all research needs listed under Group 3 for forest-derived biomass separately or in a combination with field residues. Field residues shall not be addressed separately from the forest-derived biomass. 
18. Group 3:
Q:	Do you desire someone to study forestry and field residues separately?  Do you consider them as two separate and distinct fuel groups for a power plant that you wish studied independently or could they be combined? Would it be detrimental to an applicant to study only one?
A:	Please see the response to Question 17.
19. Group 3:
Q:	Could field residues include nut shells or fruit pits?
A:	No. Nut shells and fruit pits are not intended to be treated as agricultural field residue in context of this solicitation. Any residues that result from the agricultural sector after they have been physically removed from a field for further processing are excluded from the consideration under Group 3 in this solicitation. 
20. Group 3:
Q:	What is the number of projects you want to fund in Group 3?
A:	Only one project will be funded in Group 3.
21. Group 4:
Q:	Please clarify the main intention of the second optional task of exploring air dispersion modeling issues simulating the gravitational deposition of the droplets, water evaporation in the droplets, and other issues of concern such as visibility impacts. What is the data/information gap that CEC would like to close?
A: 	In this group, the Energy Commission’s intent is to fund development of a model that will accurately predict PM2.5 and PM10 emissions released from cooling towers of thermal power generation facilities. This air dispersion model will include simulations of the actual flow path of PM emissions based on variables including but not limited to droplet size, ambient temperature, relative humidity, PM content of incoming air, Total Dissolved Solids in cooling water, wind speed, wind direction, and working fluid temperature.

22. Group 4:
Q:	Is the CEC interested in particulate matter (PM) emissions from wet cooling towers at refineries?
A:	The source of funding for the projects awarded under this solicitation is Electric Program Investment Charge (EPIC) program and proposed research must therefore have a strong connection to electricity generation, transmission, distribution, and/or storage. Proposals for Group 4 must explore PM emissions from the cooling tower associated with thermal power plants. The proposed research must provide benefit to ratepayers in California IOU territories.
23. Group 4:
Q:	What is the number of projects you want to fund in Group 4?
A:	Only one project will be funded in Group 4.
24. Group 5
Q:	If we are working with flow battery manufacturers for obtaining manufacturing process data, but they do not want the data they provide to be linked by name to their company, is it acceptable to anonymize the data? For example, is it acceptable to present the data for vanadium flow batteries from different companies in the project as "Vanadium Flow Battery 1" and "Vanadium Flow Battery 2", etc. instead of referencing the provided product data to the names of the companies that provided them?
A:	Yes, it is possible to use anonymized data. Please keep in mind that proposals must not include any confidential information. Confidential information is grounds for automatic disqualification of an application. 
25. Group 5:
Q:  	Will you award only one proposal under this group? Have all team members be located in the state of California? We are working on non-traditional Lithium ion battery, can our research focus on this technology or do we need to consider different technologies?
A: 	Yes, we will award only one proposal in the group 5. Team members are not required to be located in California. However, it will have influence on your score in the scoring criterion “Funds spent in California.”  Research funded under this group should identify more than one promising electrochemical energy storage technology. 
26. Group 5:
Q: 	Are the life-cycle studies focused on the use phase of battery?
A:	Manufacturing and end-of-life phases must be addressed, as indicated in the solicitation manual; the proposed research must consider all phases of the battery life.
27. Group 5:
Q: 	Deep dive of one or two energy storage technologies or comprehensive?
A: 	It will be up to the applicant to decide and to justify the choice, as we were not explicit on preference. Focus on the technologies that show promise for the years to come.
28. Group 6:
Q:	Is the LCA study limited to battery technologies only, and if so is it then limited to the actual battery only?
A:	No, the study must not be limited to the actual battery only. The proposed research under Group 5 must explore potential risks from all materials and processes within a life cycle of battery and battery components and identify options that would mitigate environmental impacts.
29. Group 7:
Q:	How much actual testing of A3 refrigerants is expected in Group 7, given the limited budget of this project, the fact that there are several other requested deliverables, and that testing of flammable refrigerants may require likely careful (re-)designs, multiple design reviews, and chamber modifications and upgrades?
A:	Sufficient testing must be conducted to confirm the energy efficiency and refrigerant flammability for the A3 refrigerants and the testing should be consistent with other standard setting groups in the event that the tests conducted will feed into future code iterations. The refrigerants may be tested within actual equipment that either uses A3 refrigerants currently, or might use A3 refrigerants in the future, such as AC units, packaged terminal AC units, smaller heat pumps, and smaller AC units for work or residence. Redesigns and chamber modifications may be necessary to satisfy the solicitation' goals of having the results feed into future codes and standards. However, retrofitting already installed equipment with A3 refrigerants is not necessary.
30. Group 7:
Q:	If testing of A3 refrigerants is expected, can the CEC help clarify the type(s) of testing that is sought? Is the CEC looking for drop-in testing capability on existing cooling equipment, or more detailed testing of refrigerant flammability characteristics?
A:	Please see response to Question 29. In addition to drop-in testing of energy efficiency of the alternative refrigerants in existing cooling equipment, testing of refrigerant flammability characteristics in the equipment is also needed to determine the refrigerant’s characteristics in its appropriate application.

31. Group 7:
Q:	The Solicitation states: “Describe your test procedures for testing the alternative refrigerants for energy savings compared to R-410A and flammability”.  There are potentially two distinct types of testing: (a) testing for energy efficiency such as drop-in testing on existing cooling units; and (b) testing/characterization for refrigerant flammability and other properties. Can the CEC please help clarify the type(s) of testing procedures that are being sought? Would either (a) or (b) suffice; or are both types of testing sought?
A:	Both types of testing are required for this research and we will clarify in an addendum to also include R-404 A.
32. Group 7:
Q: 	Technical Merit and Need, under bullet 4 it says “Describe your test procedures for testing the alternative refrigerants for energy savings compared to R-410A and flammability and how the procedures are complementary to those used by other standard setting groups (such as ASHRAE and AHRI) in future rulemakings.” That will work for all of the equipment identified at the air conditioning, but the intent of that what I think is R-410A is the baseline refrigerant that is not the alternative and you would want to use the baseline refrigerant for the self-contained commercial refrigeration products. They don’t use R-410A. You would want to compare that to something like R4 or R4A. I don’t know how you would address that if somebody is submitting an application where they say can we just compare that to what is the actual baseline?
A: 	This bullet will be updated in an addendum to include R-404A: Describe your test procedures for testing the alternative refrigerants for energy savings (such as R-410A and R-404 A) and flammability and how the procedures are complementary to those used by other standard setting groups (such as ASHRAE and AHRI) in future rulemakings.
33. Group 7:
Q: 	Question about the second bullet, in solicitation manual on p.30 it says “Describe the technical knowledge needed to accelerate the adoption of alternative refrigerants, especially A3 refrigerants as it relates to such areas as safety of refrigerants’ flammability, equipment redesigns, equipment replacement, etc.” I just want to get a clarification because this second bullet sounds like other refrigerants other than A3 will also be in the scope. Is that correct? Does it include A2 refrigerants?
A: 	The intent of this group is to focus on A3. The intent is to not include A2 refrigerants. The Energy Commission is already funding work focused on A2. and our idea is to take it further and to look into For this solicitation the focus is A3 refrigerants and analysis of their energy efficiency potential as refrigerants, flammability characteristics, analyze their and also to evaluation of their global warming potential. 
34. Group 7:
Q:	On page 30 of Grant Funding Opportunity (GFO), there are four bullet points covering efficiency, safety, applicability and testing in the Technical Merit and Need section. 
	a) Is it required that a proposal must address all four bullet points? 
b) If a proposal only addresses one of the four aspects, such as the safety aspect, would it still be acceptable?
A: 	a) Yes. The proposal must address all four bullet points.
b) If less than four of the bullet points are addressed, your proposal will receive a lower score during the technical scoring phase (section IV.F.) 
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